
1April 2018

UPDATE: THE PRA’S REGULATORY 
APPROACH TO INSURERS’ PREPARATIONS 
FOR BREXIT

Key points
• The PRA has released a supervisory 

statement for establishing a third 
country branch, with guidance on/
when a subsidiary application 
should instead be submitted.

• The PRA expects that insurers with 
more than £500 million of FSCS 
protected-liabilities should conduct 
business in the UK through a UK 
subsidiary rather than a branch. 
The raising of the limit to £500 from 
the £200 million figure will mean that 
more branch applications (rather 
than subsidiary applications) will 
be accepted. 

• Guidance issued in the form of 
a “Dear CEO” letter confirms that 
EU firms’ passporting in should plan 
on the assumption that PRA 
authorisation will only be needed 
by the end of the transition period. 

• The position for UK firms’ 
passporting out remains uncertain.

On 28 March 2018, the Bank of England (“BoE”) issued a press 
release on its regulatory approach to Brexit. In the press release, 
the BoE published a number of documents including a policy 
statement setting out the Prudential Regulation Authority’s 
(“PRA”) revised approach to the authorisation and supervision 
of international insurers (PS4/18), together with a related 
“Dear CEO” letter on firms’ preparations for Brexit. This note 
examines the impact of the publications on insurers’ 
Brexit planning.

International insurers
• The PRA sets out the final text of its supervisory statement (SS2/18) following its 

consultation “International insurers: the Prudential Regulation Authority’s approach 
to branch authorisation and supervision” (CP30/17). In the consultation, the PRA 
proposed the circumstances a branch of an international insurer could be authorised 
in the UK in its own right and in which the supervisory approach for that branch. 
For an analysis on the CP30/17 proposals, please refer to our briefing: PRA consult 
on approach to insurance branch authorisation after Brexit, 9 February 2018.

• The new approach as set out in SS2/18 came into effect from 29 March 2018. 
The statement is particularly relevant for EEA firms currently branching into the UK 
under passporting arrangements and intending to apply for PRA authorisation 
in order to continue operating in the UK after the UK leaves the EU.

• In general, the PRA has acted on the industry feedback, therefore we expect insurers 
to respond positively to the final approach taken in SS2/18. We outline below the key 
policy proposals consulted in CP30/17 which we raised with the PRA in our response 
to the consultation and the PRA’s response as set out in PS4/18 

− The PRA initially proposed that insurers with more than £200 million 
of FSCS-protected liabilities should apply for authorisation as a UK subsidiary 
rather than conducting business through a branch. In our response to the PRA, 
we set out our view that this threshold was far too low a bar, particularly when 
compared to banks who had a (generally speaking) equivalent limit for £500 
million. We also highlighted that the £200 million limit, if implemented, would 
disadvantage a number of insurance groups which would have to subsidiarise 
(with capital and costs implications) when their competitors, who would have no 
materially different impact on PRA objectives, could operate through a branch. 
In PS4/18, the PRA acts on this feedback and has increased the FSCS-protected 
liabilities threshold from £200 million to £500 million. This is the material change 
to the draft statement and will be a welcomed one.

https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/news/2018/march/update-on-the-regulatory-approach-to-preparations-for-eu-withdrawal
https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/-/media/boe/files/prudential-regulation/consultation-paper/2017/cp3017.pdf?la=en&hash=FA4613AF416B1E6EDB48329EC67FC61C2E13AF55
https://www.cliffordchance.com/briefings/2018/02/pra_consult_on_approachtoinsurancebranc.html
https://www.cliffordchance.com/briefings/2018/02/pra_consult_on_approachtoinsurancebranc.html
https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/news/2018/march/update-on-the-regulatory-approach-to-preparations-for-eu-withdrawal
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− The PRA did not define ‘FSCS-protected liabilities’ in CP30/17. This omission 
meant that insurers could not accurately determine whether they would exceed 
the proposed £200 million threshold. We raised this point both with the PRA Policy 
Team and in our response to the PRA. Our internal analysis suggested that PRA 
intended ‘FSCS-protected liabilities’ to mean an estimate of the aggregate amount 
of protected claims of eligible claimants, calculated gross of reinsurance – 
a position helpfully confirmed by the PRA in PS4/18.

− The PRA proposed additional factors (such as the insurer’s market share in a niche 
market and the level of connectivity to other stakeholders within the industry) 
to assess a third-country branch’s potential impact against the PRA’s objectives 
and the risk to financial stability. The PRA has retained the additional factors 
in SS2/18. Our view remains that certain of these factors should not be particularly 
relevant to the assessment – particularly those factors relating to niche or 
non-substitutable products. It remains to be seen therefore how this is operated 
in practice.

“Dear CEO” letter
• In the “Dear CEO” letter, Sam Woods states that, in the light of the agreement on 

the transition period and the government’s commitment for a ‘temporary 
permissions’ regime, EU firms’ passporting in should plan on the assumption that 
PRA authorisation will only be needed by the end of the transition period. Although 
this guidance appears straightforward, there are a few issues that insurers should 
be aware of:

− The Withdrawal Agreement (see our briefing Insurance Brexit Update: Transition, 
Temporary Permissions and Contract Continuity – 28 March 2018) which 
contains a transition period of 21 months (until 31 December 2020) has not yet 
been ratified. 

− Although much mention has been made of the ‘temporary permissions’ regime, 
there are no publicly available details as to how it will work in practice. 
Nevertheless, the letter encourages, that in light of this guidance, firms should 
consider how best to make use of the additional time provided by the transition 
period in their planning.

− The reliance on the transitional period and reference to the ‘temporary 
permissions’ regime is only relevant to incoming firms. The position for firms’ 
passporting out of the UK remains uncertain. It is hoped that, following its previous 
Opinion on contract continuity, the European Insurance and Occupational 
Pensions Authority (EIOPA), in coordination with EU insurance regulators, will 
provide similar guidance to the PRA which will provide similar levels of certainty 
for outbound insurers.

• The letter also confirms that the PRA will continue to work closely with firms and will 
provide guidance on the timing of their applications in the light of their individual 
circumstances, in the context of any relevant developments in the political process, 
and with a view to making the process run as smoothly as possible.

https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/news/2018/march/update-on-the-regulatory-approach-to-preparations-for-eu-withdrawal
https://www.cliffordchance.com/briefings/2018/03/insurance_brexitupdatetransitiontemporar.html
https://www.cliffordchance.com/briefings/2018/03/insurance_brexitupdatetransitiontemporar.html
https://eiopa.europa.eu/Publications/Opinions/2017-12-21 EIOPA-BoS-17-389_Opinion_on_service_continuity.pdf
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